CABINET
4.00 pm WEDNESDAY, 25TH NOVEMBER, 2020
REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.
This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet
All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined
above.

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. An item is

subject to call-in within 5 working days from the date a decision is published unless
reference to an item’s urgency is made at the time the decision is made. Any member
of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685 725284) or email
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded of their personal
responsibility to declare any personal and
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members
Code of Conduct

Note:
(a) Members are reminded that they must
identify the item number and subject matter
that their interest relates to and signify the
nature of the personal interest and
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting
as a consequence of the disclosure of a
prejudicial interest they must notify the
Chair when they leave
OPEN SESSION
Strategic
3.

Capital Budget Monitoring 2020-21 – Quarter 2
To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive

4.

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-21 – Quarter 2
To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive

5.

5 - 14

15 - 26

Endorsement of Regional Technical Statement
(RTS)
To consider report of
Neighbourhood Services

the

Chief

Officer 27 - 30

Portfolio
6.

Safer Streets Grant – Delegated Authority
To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 31 - 34
Executive

7.

Cwm Taf Carers Annual Report 2019-20
To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 35 - 54
Services

Information Reports
8.

Circular Economy Fund - Award of Funding
To receive report of
Neighbourhood Services

the

Chief

Officer 55 - 58

9.

Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair

CLOSED SESSION
Exempt
In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the
public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph/s (14) under Part 4
of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.
10.

Revenue Request - Christmas 2020
To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 59 - 62
Executive

COMPOSITION:

Councillors

K O'Neill (Chair)
L Mytton (Vice-Chair)

Councillors
G Thomas

A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
The Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Committee Division
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

10th November 2020
Adele Lewis/Geoff Francis
Finance
Strategic
Non Exempt
25th November 2020

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Capital Budget Monitoring 2020/21 – Quarter 2
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

This report details the capital expenditure and financing position for the Period
Ending 30th September 2020 for both core and externally funded capital projects.

1.2

The report details the capital expenditure position for the period 1st April 2020 to
30th September 2020, together with expenditure projections for the 2020/21 financial
year.

1.3

There is an underspend of £696,000 on core funded projects and an underspend of
£12,000 on externally funded projects for the financial year 2020/21 based on the
financial position as at 30th September 2019, which is the end of the second quarter.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS that:

2.1

The Capital Monitoring Report for the second quarter of 2020/21 be noted.

2.2

The budget amendments for core-funded projects as outlined in 4.1 below be
approved.

2.3

Variances to the budgets as per paragraphs 4.2 be noted.

2.4

The requirements for officers to continue to rigorously monitor budgets to ensure that
expenditure remains within approved budgets be noted.

Page 5

3.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1

The revised Core Capital Programme as agreed at Cabinet of 16th September 2020
for the 2020/21 financial year totalled £17.396 million. It is financed through General
Capital Funding received from the Welsh Government, unsupported borrowing
through the Prudential Code framework and the utilisation of capital receipts from
fixed asset disposals.

3.2

Details in respect of core funded projects are outlined in Appendix 1.

3.3

The Council also secured additional funding through external grants, mainly from the
Welsh Government and Heritage Lottery Fund totalling £14.652 million for the
2020/21 financial year.

3.4

Details in respect of grant/externally funded projects are outlined in Appendix 2.

4.0

CORE FUNDED PROJECTS

4.1

Amendments to the budgets of core funded projects are outlined in Appendix 1 and
detailed further within Appendix 3.

4.2

Appendix 1 shows that £2.832 million of capital expenditure has been incurred on
core financed projects up to 30th September 2020 with a net under spend of
£696,000 against budget for the financial year. Appendix 4 details the schemes and
reasons for the under spend position. It should be noted that capital expenditure
tends to be weighted towards the second half of the financial year.

5.0

OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS

5.1

Other capital projects totalling £14.652 million funded from a variety of external
capital grants together with the related financing profiles are detailed in Appendix 2.

5.2

During the quarter, £1.049 million in additional external grants were secured.
However, these were partially off-set by grant reductions as a result of project reprofiling leaving a net increase of £22,000 as detailed in Appendix 5.

5.3

Appendix 2 shows that £5.530 million of capital expenditure has been incurred on
externally financed projects up to the 30th September 2020 with an underspend of
£12,000 against budget.

5.4

Utilisation of each individual grant is defined by detailed prescriptive terms and
conditions specific to that grant, including eligibility for carry over to the following
financial year.

Page 6

6.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

A total projected spend of £29.166 million with an underspend of £708,000 is
projected for both core and grant funded projects for 2020/21 based on the position
as at 30th September 2020 which is the end of the second quarter of the financial
year

7.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

4 of 4

0 of 4

0 of 4

5 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 10

0 of 10

10 of 10

0 of 1

0 of 1

1 of 1

2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:






Long term
Prevention
Integration
Collaboration
Involvement

3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity
Summary:

The main positive impacts are that the capital budgets support the Council to achieve its
Well-being Objectives through its Capital Programme.

ELLIS COOPER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE
AND CORPORATE SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Document(s) Date

Document Location

Capital Budget
Monitoring Reports

September 2020

Accountancy Department

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

Page 7

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 8

Capital Monitoring Statement 2020/21
(For the period Ended 30th September 2020)

Core Funded Projects

Appendix 1

Revised
Budget
£'000

Amendment
to Budget
£'000

Revised
Budget
£'000

Out turn to
Date
£'000

Projection
2020/21
£'000

Variance
£'000

Education

Page 9

21st Century Schools Programme
Education Other

4,544
1,708

(128)
(22)

4,416
1,685

192
777

4,416
1,686

0
1

Physical Regeneration Programme

2,700

(850)

1,850

613

1,850

0

Engineering & Transport Infrastructure

1,860

(522)

1,338

397

1,364

26

Land, Buildings & Corporate

6,584

(651)

5,933

853

5,210

(723)

17,396

(2,173)

15,222

2,832

14,526

(696)

Total

Core Funding Available

Revised
Budget
£'000

Amendment
to Budget
£'000

Revised
Budget
£'000

Out turn to
Date
£'000

Projection
2020/21
£'000

Variance
£'000

General Capital Grant

1,582

0

1,582

1,582

1,582

0

Supported Borrowing

1,577

0

1,577

674

1,577

0

600

14

614

0

614

0

13,400

(2,404)

10,995

393

10,299

(696)

237

217

454

183

454

0

17,396

(2,173)

15,222

2,832

14,526

(696)

Capital Receipts
Unsupported Borrowing
Capital Contribution Reserve
Total

Capital Monitoring Statement 2020/21
(For the period Ended 30th September 2020)

Specified Grant/External Funded Projects

Appendix 2

Current
Budget
£000

Amendment
to Budget
£000

Revised
Budget
£000

Out turn
2020/21
£000

Projection
2020/21
£'000

Variance
£000

Page 10

Education
21st Century Schools Programme
Education Other

1,291
1,631

111
(561)

1,402
1,070

1,093
99

1,402
1,069

0
(1)

Physical Regeneration Programme

8,528

410

8,938

3,201

8,932

(6)

Engineering & Transport Infrastructure

2,711

62

2,773

774

2,773

0

469

0

469

363

464

(5)

14,630

22

14,652

5,530

14,640

(12)

Housing and Corporate
Total

Specific Grant/Other Funding Available
Welsh Government

Current
Budget
£000

Amendment
to Budget
£000

Revised
Budget
£000

Out turn
2020/21
£000

Projection
2020/21
£'000

Variance
£000

13,541

380

13,921

5,297

13,913

(8)

Integrated Care Fund

73

0

73

49

69

(4)

Home Office Funding

0

62

62

0

62

0

Heritage Lottery Fund

560

(280)

280

85

280

0

Other Contrbutions

456

(140)

316

99

316

0

14,630

22

14,652

5,530

14,640

(12)

Total

Capital Monitoring Statement 2020/21
(For the period Ended 30th September 2020)
Proposed Budget Amendments - Core Funded Projects
Ref. Budget Head

Appendix 3

Amendment Explanation
£'000

Page 11

1 Ysgol -y- Graig School

(128)

2 Troedyrhiw School Roof

(22)

3 VVP / City Deal

(500)

4 Glebeland Bus Station Redevelopment

(350)

5 Harvey's Bridge

(119)

6 Victoria Tramroad

(80)

7 Ysgol - y - Graig Infrastructure

(200)

Adjustment required to realign MTCBC's funding profile to
that of the Welsh Goverments 21st Century Schools
programme.
Proposed works to the canteen roof were substituted for
roofing works on the main school. The cost difference has
been requested to be carried forward into 2021/22 to enable
the original works (together with other works scheduled) to be
carried out.
It is expected that the contract to develop the YMCA site will
be awarded in February / March 2021. The allignment of
budget to expected spend profile requires a roll-over of
funding into the 2021/22 financial year.
As the redevelopment of the site will not commence until the
new bus station is operational, limited expenditure will be
incurred this financial year. A roll-over of funding into 2021/22
is requested to fund future works.
The impact of Covid-19 and the priority given to storm
damage repairs have prevented these scheme from
progressing and the requirement to re-schedule in 2021/22.
A budget roll-over for each scheme is therefore requested.
Reprofiling of the school build has resulted in a delay to
required infrastructure works which are not expected to start
until June 2021. A roll over of funding is therefore required.

Capital Monitoring Statement 2020/21
(For the period Ended 30th September 2020)
Proposed Budget Amendments - Core Funded Projects

Appendix 3

8 Highways Capital

(48)

9 Highways Drainage

(75)

Page 12

10 Edwardsville Cemetery

(70)

11 Salt Barn

(112)

12 Pearls Playground

16

13 Shingrig Play Area

105

14 Pengarnddu

(700)

15 CCTV Upgrades

20

16 Kerbside Recycling Vehicle

90

The proposed resurfacing of Abercanaid Road had been
delayed and is unlikely to take place until the early part of
2021/22. It is requested that the cost associated with this
scheme be carried forward.
Preference has been given to drainage schemes funded
through the Welsh Government grant of £600k in this
financial year. Core monies will still be required to carry out
essential drainage schemes in future years and so a carry
over of funding requested.
Bats have been found in Sextan House preventing planned
demolition works. It is expected that a delay of at least 12
months will result and therefore a request is made to carry
forward funding.
Plans for the site have yet to be agreed so a request to carry
forward funding is made .
An additional allocation from the Community Infrastructure
Levy Fund (CIL) has been allocated to provide for play
equipment.
Section 106 (£75k) & CIL (30k) funding have been provided to
develop the play area in Trelewis.
Further delays in the issue of correct permits / licenses have
prevented clearence works from progressing. The issue may
possibly be resolved in early November allowing works to
begin, but if so, it is expected that only 15% of the total works
would be completed by the end of the financial year. A rollover of funding is therefore required.
A revenue contribution has been provided to fund a CCTV link
from the Gurnos shopping area to the Community Centre.
An allocation from the Community Infrastructure Levy Fund
(CIL) of £76k and a further £14k from capital receipts have
been allocated to purchase an additional kerbside recycling
vehicle.

Capital Monitoring Statement 2020/21
(For the period Ended 30th September 2020)
Major Variances - Core Funded Projects
Ref.

Budget Head
1 Greenfield School Portacabin
2 SCMG 18/19 - Dowlais LRB (Bungalow)
3 SCMG 18/19 - Edwardsville Toilets
4 Highways Congestion Improvement Schemes
5 Road Bridge Masonry Repairs (5 bridges)

Appendix 4

Variance
£'000
(1)
1
1
18
8

Page 13

6 Riverside

(400)

7 Disabled Facility Grants

(340)

8 CCTV Upgrades

17

Explanation

Purchase costs marginally lower than expected
Costs maginally higher than anticipated (less than £1,000 per
scheme)
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, additional costs are likely as a
result of additional PPE requirements, longer collection times
associated with material collection, inability to share vehicles
to and from site, and extended construction times.
Demolition costs were significantly lower than expected
Works have been limited due to the impact of Covid-19
restrictions. Estimates of 16th October suggest an
underspend of 40% of available budget.
Unexpected repairs to ducting, civil works and additional
wireless links were required within Merthyr Town Centre for
which no budget had been provided.

Capital Monitoring Statement 2020/21
(For the period Ended 30th September 2020)
Major New Scheme External Grant Funding
Ref.

Grant Description
1
2
3
4

21st Century Schools - Ysgol Y Graig
21st Century Schools - Gurnos Community Hub
Class Size Reduction - Ysgol St Tydfil
Childcare Offer Capital Grant Programme

Appendix 5

£'000
127
(16)
305
(873)

Page 14

5 Cyfarthfa High School Security

7

6 Town Centre Street Lighting

62

7 Active Travel

200

8 Pentrebach Park & Ride

(100)

9 Merthyr Bus / Rail Interchange

(50)

10 Pontmorlais Townscape Heritage Quarter

(420)

11 Regional Valleys Park Descovery Gateway

700

12 The Crucible

80

Grant Details

Reprofiling of schemes and requested adjustments to realign
spend profiles to Welsh Government grant payment
schedules. Overall, the funding of each individual scheme
remains unchanged.
Adjustment of funding as reported at quarter 1 to enhance
security measures at Cyfarthfa High School.
To install new and improve existing street lighting at strategic
points within Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre.
Promote active travel, improved health & well being, air
quality, access to employment, education and key services
Revision to the allocation of Local Transport Funding (LTF)
for 2020/2. Funding is actively matched to scheme
requirements and may be increased or decreased accordingly
throughout the financial year.
Lockdown restrictions have reduced the number of schemes
undertaken. It was envisaged that 4 - 5 buildings would be
completely and a further two partially refurbished this year.
Currently, work has just started on the third building. Funding
remains unchanged albeit reprofiled into future years.
Remodelling of the Canolfan building and development of
playground facilities
To support a working group which will consider the
development of a visitor attraction of international quality at
Cyfarthfa

Agenda Item 4
Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Committee Division
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

11th November 2020
Steve Jones / Ian Kent / Adam Price
Finance
Strategic
Non Exempt
25th November 2020

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21 – Quarter 2
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

The report details the projected revenue outturn for 2020/21 as at 30th September
2020, that is the 2nd Quarter, and was considered at Budget Board on 11h November
2020.

1.2

The report advises Cabinet of the projected outturn position for the 2020/21 financial
year whilst focusing on projected major budget variances.

1.3

A net revenue deficit of £504,000 is projected for the financial year with budget
deficits of £433,000 projected for Corporate Services, £469,000 for the Finance
Department and £430,000 projected for Corporate Authority. These deficits have
been offset by projected Covid-19 Loss of Income funding of £1.2 million.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S) that

2.1

The Revenue Budget Monitoring report for the 2020/21 financial year based on 2nd
Quarter projections be accepted.

2.2

Budget Virements outlined in Appendix 2 be approved.

2.3

Managers to urgently address projected budget deficits within their respective
service areas, identifying all possible remedial measures to offset projected deficits,
be approved.

Page 15

2.4

Managers to continue to monitor all revenue budgets and immediately notify the
Chief Finance Officer of potential financial difficulties, be approved.

3.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1

Regular planned budget monitoring is crucial in ensuring effective financial
stewardship and accountability and is governed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy’s recommended best working practices.

3.2

It is considered critical that Budget Monitoring arrangements are continually
reviewed and enhanced to ensure continued effectiveness with robust challenge
provided by both the Budget Board and the Change and Wellbeing Programme
Board.

3.3

This report details the net revenue expenditure position for the period 1st April 2020
to 30th September 2020 (2nd Quarter) and revenue outturn projections for the
2020/21 financial year, and was considered at Budget Board of 11h November 2020.

4.0

FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 2019/20

4.1

Detailed in Appendix 1 is the summary Revenue Budget Monitoring statement as at
30th September 2020, with a net revenue deficit of £504,000 projected for the
2020/21 financial year.

4.2

Detailed in Appendix 2 are requested Budget virements resulting from budget realignment, required investment and departmental re-configuration.

5.0

MAJOR VARIANCES
Social Services

5.1

The Social Services Department is projected to underspend by £65,000. However
there is a significant overspend of £1.120 million projected for CLA Residential
placements due to 3 new placements and additional costs to avoid secure
placements.

5.2

A surplus of £354,000 is projected for CLA Independent Fostering Agencies and a
deficit of £218,000 is projected for CLA fostering In house Fostering. 5 placements
have transitioned from IFA’s into in house fostering.

5.3

A deficit of £131,000 is projected for the Homes for the Elderly mainly due to high
levels of staff sickness not due to Covid19 within the southern Home.

Page 16

5.4

A surplus of £144,000 is projected for Llysfaen Fach due to an underspend on
Agency and overtime payments.

5.5

A surplus of £202,000 is projected for Independent Domiciliary Care due to a
significant reduction of weekly hours currently 2513 weekly hours compared to 3000
budgeted. This has been a trend through 20/21 and may be an ongoing trend as
services evolve through Covid19 impacts.

5.6

A surplus of £478,000 is projected for Independent Residential Establishments, there
have been a net reduction due to deaths/discharges since the start of the year. The
current pandemic is impacting on care home admissions so numbers are lower than
the anticipated levels within the MTFP.

5.7

The projections within Social Services take into account all known Covid19 related
financial issues. However there is an acknowledgement there are probably unknown
pressures specifically within Children Services that will emerge as we move out of
lockdown.

Places & Transformation
5.8

A deficit of £87,000 is projected against the Orbit Centre. The Centre is still
receiving income from tenants but there is no conference income, an assumption
has been made that conferences will not be held for the remaining financial year.
This has improved by £48,000 since month 5 due to a customer hiring room space
for a 4 month period.

5.9

A deficit of £476,000 is projected against Revenues, the projection is based on no
bailiff fees or court costs recovered for the remaining year, this situation may
improve.

5.10

A deficit of £340,000 is projected against Parking Services due to a loss of significant
income. The Multi-Storey Car Park is now open but with significant people still
working from home the projection is based on the current income levels remaining
for the financial year.

Corporate
5.11

A deficit of £430,000 is projected for the Corporate Authority budget. The most
significant issue is a projected overspend of £419,000 against the Council Tax
Benefit Payments budget resulting from greater demand. The number of cases has
increased by 225 since March 2020, an increase of 3.6%. There is indication from
WG that £256,000 will be funded, to date we have received £64,000. There is
significant risk there will be further pressures against this budget as the Job
Retention Scheme comes to an end.

Page 17

COVID-19
5.12

The Authority has had to incur additional expenditure in dealing with the pandemic.
The major additional costs which have been incurred are:o Free School meals - Initially making food parcels available to families entitled to
free school meals, later moving to a cash payment or voucher of £3.90 per FSM
child. This scheme was extended throughout school holidays until end of August
2020 at a cost of £1.117 million. This has been 100% funded from the Hardship
fund.
o A new responsibility to provide temporary accommodation to everyone who
presents as homeless, until suitable housing can be found. It is estimated that
this could cost £770,000 for the year. These costs will be claimed from the
Hardship fund.
o Provide additional payments to private residential and nursing homes to mitigate
the additional costs faced by these homes in dealing with the pandemic.
Payments have also been made to homes to fund vacant beds.
o ICT costs to allow office based staff to work from home, WG have funded 50% of
these costs from the Hardship fund up to June. To date £205,000 ICT costs will
need to be funded by the Authority. These costs have been made as an
investment to allow homeworking and they could be funded from the Authority’s
Investment Fund.
To date, the Council has claimed £2.775m for costs incurred for March-September
from the Hardship Fund.

5.13

Welsh Government have made £78m available across Wales to fund loss of income
in Quarter 1 April- June. The Authority was paid £668k for Q1.

5.14

Council Tax forms part of the overall funding available to the Authority. A reduced
collection rate, current down by 1.8% will impact the Council’s cash flow and the
Collection fund surplus budget of £850,000 could be affected. It is difficult to quantify
at this point in time and will depend on the economic recovery, as lockdown is eased
and the Job Retention Scheme ends people’s ability to pay their Council Tax may
change significantly. An estimate of £815,000 has been made at month 6 based on
the correct information available, but the situation will be monitored closely
throughout the year, if the collection rate remains low the probability of higher levels
of bad debt write-off will increase.

6.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

A net deficit budget outturn of £504,000 is projected for 2020/21 based on the
financial position as at 30th September 2020.

6.2

The Authority is still awaiting confirmation from Welsh Government regarding funding
to support the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for Quarters 2-4, and has sought
further clarity from the Welsh Government panel on whether the loss of bailiff and
court costs income can be funded.

Page 18

The chart below shows the projected value of additional demands in 2020/21 as
reported to date, and our assumptions of how this will be funded.

Funding Assumptions for Additional Demands
7

6
£0.504 m

Additional Demands (£'m)

6.3

£1.166 m

5

£0.811 m

4

£0.064 m

£1.360 m

£1.204 m

£0.064 m

£0.613 m
Unfunded
CTRS funding

3

Loss of income funding

Hardship funding

2

£3.826 m

£3.723 m

£4.015 m

1

0
Month 3
(Cabinet)

Month 5
(Budget Board)
Reporting Period

Page 19

Month 6
(Cabinet)

7.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives
2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:
 Long term
 Prevention
 Integration
 Collaboration
 Involvement
3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

4 of 4

0 of 4

0 of 4

5 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 10

0 of 10

10 of 10

0 of 1

0 of 1

1 of 1

Summary:
The main positive impacts are that the report contributes to the financial sustainability of
the Council and therefore enables the continued delivery of essential Council services.

ELLIS COOPER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE
AND CORPORATE SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Revenue Budget
Monitoring Working
Papers

Document(s) Date

Document Location

April 2020 to September
2020

Accountancy Department

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 20

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21 (As at 30 September 2020)
Corporate Summary

Summary

People and Performance
Social Services, Chief Officer Social Services
Learning, Chief Officer Education
Covid-19 Loss of Income Funding

30-Jun-20
Budget
2020/21
£'000

Vacant
Post
Virements
£'000

Appendix 1

Pay award

30-Sep-20
Budget
2020/21
£'000

Other
Virements
£'000

£'000

Outturn
Month 6
£'000

Year End
Projection
£'000

Variance
£'000
%

34,253
49,243
0
83,496

-118
3
0
-115

106
65
0
171

0
0
0
0

34,241
49,311
0
83,552

13,854
46,787
-131
60,510

34,176
49,486
-237
83,425

-65
175
-237
-127

-0.19
0.35
0.00
-0.15

Place and Transformation
Deputy Chief Executive Services
Community Regeneration
Neighbourhood Services
Corporate Services
Finance
Legal
Human Resources & Organisational Development
Corporate Communications
Covid-19 Loss of Income Funding
Total

2,017
3,937
11,362
4,164
1,345
1,414
706
0
0
24,945

-3
-4
-2
-37
-9
0
0
0
0
-55

0
19
53
16
24
5
6
2
0
125

-2,014
2,615
-2
-2,538
1,844
-71
0
184
0
18

0
6,567
11,411
1,605
3,204
1,348
712
186
0
25,033

0
3,867
5,750
999
1,974
675
261
115
-537
13,104

0
6,565
11,673
2,058
3,691
1,365
706
197
-967
25,288

0
-2
262
453
487
17
-6
11
-967
255

0.00
-0.03
2.30
28.22
15.20
1.26
-0.84
5.91
0.00
1.02

Corporate Costs
Corporate Management - Executive
Corporate Authority
Covid-19 Support for CTRS
Total

1,426
18,061
0
19,487

-45
0
0
-45

11
0
0
11

-20
0
0
-20

1,372
18,061
0
19,433

644
5,943
-64
6,523

1,342
18,491
-64
19,769

-30
430
-64
336

-2.19
2.38
0.00
1.73

-835
94
-850
-233
706
300
423
-395

0
0
0
215
0
0
0
215

0
0
0
0
0
0
-307
-307

0
0
0
0
0
0
2
2

-835
94
-850
-18
706
300
118
-485

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

-835
94
-815
-218
706
300
118
-650

0
0
35
-200
0
0
0
-165

0.00
0.00
-4.12
1,111.11
0.00
0.00
0.00
34.02

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1335
750
111
290
382
1
2
-2775
46
142

1335
1356
111
770
440
1
2
-4015
205
205

1,335
1,356
111
770
440
1
2
-4,015
205
205

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
101.00
100.00

127,533

0

0

0

127,533

80,279

128,037

504

0.39

Contributions / Recharges
Non General Fund Allocations
Discretionary Non Domestic Rate Relief
Collection Fund Surplus
Corporate Vacancy Factor
Redundancy & EPP /slippage
Contribution to Budget Reserve
Provision for Further Commitments
Total
COVID19 CODES
Education
Social Services
Neighbourhood Services
Housing
Corporate
Covid 19 - Registrars
Covid 19 - Public Protection & Health
Covid-19 Hardship Funding
IT Homeworking Equipment
Total
Net Expenditure

Page 21

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21 (As at 30 September 2020)
Proposed Budget Virements
Virement From
Budget
EOTAS (PRU) Ty Dysgu
New Teacher 1 - Elected Home Education
ICT Computers (Deputy Chief Executive Services)
Schools ICT Team (Deputy Chief Executive Services)
ICT Printing (Deputy Chief Executive Services)
Business Change & Risk Management (Deputy Chief Executive
Services)
Corporate Communication Team inc Contact (Deputy Chief Executive
Services)
News Merthyr/Contact Supplement (Deputy Chief Executive Services)

Page 22

Emergency Planning (Deputy Chief Executive Services)
Street Cleansing
Waste Strategy
Development Planning

Revenues (Corporate Services)
Benefits (Corporate Services)
Leisure Trust (Corporate Services)
Retained Leisure (Corporate Services)
Sports Development (Corporate Services)
Mayor Expenses (Legal)
Corporate Management

Virement To
Amount
£'000
Budget
-15 Individual Schools Budget (ISB)
-35
-1392
0
-138
-285

Elected Home Education
ICT Computers (Finance)
Schools ICT Team (Finance)
ICT Printing (Finance)
Business Change & Risk Management (Community Regeneration)

-112 Corporate Communication Team inc Contact (Corporate
Communications)
-1 News Merthyr/Contact Supplement (Corporate Communications)
-86 Emergency Planning (Community Regeneration)
-1 ICT Computers
-1
-9 Building Control

83 Revenues (Finance)
-395 Benefits (Finance)
-2,423
-88
0
-71
-20

Leisure Trust (Community Regeneration)
Retained Leisure (Community Regeneration)
Sports Development (Community Regeneration)
Mayor Expenses (Corporate Communications)
Economic Developmemt

Appendix 2

Amount
Reason for Virement
£'000
15 Correction of previous virement which was over
inflated.
35 To reflect the current structure.
1392 To reflect the current structure.
0 To reflect the current structure.
138 To reflect the current structure.
285 To reflect the current structure.
112 To reflect the current structure.
1 To reflect the current structure.
86 To reflect the current structure.
2 Budgets moved for the GIS system.
9 Underspend on vacant Heritage & Conservation
Officer post vired to cover cost of Apprentice
Building Control Officer post
-83 Revenue department now reports directly to Chief
Finance Officer.
395 Benefits department now reports directly to Chief
Finance Officer.
2,423 To reflect the current structure.
88 To reflect the current structure.
0 To reflect the current structure.
71 To reflect the current structure.
20 Vire part of vacant Chief Officer salary to cover
temporary increase in grade for Head of Housing &
Regeneration.

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21 (As at 30 September 2020)
Major Variances
Ref.

Budget Head
1 MTCBC Homes For the Elderly

Appendix 3

Variance Variance Explanation
Action Taken to address
£'000
%
131
7.47 Southern Home (projecting an overspend of £118k) - delays in filling vacancies resulting in agency Continue to monitor
costs and salary costs as a result of covering. Most vacancies have now been filled, however,
staff cover still required going forward owing to staff sickness and isolation and owing to covid 19.
Occupancy levels have also fallen by 7 resulting in a loss of projected income. Northern Home
projecting overspend of £3k mainly owing to salaries and agency costs because of staff covering
sickness/shielding due to the covid 19. Recent outbreak at both homes.
This includes projected income from the hardship fund and the national fee uplift up to 31st March
which equates to £62k for the Northern Home and £130k for the Southern Home.

2 MTCBC Group Home (Llysfaen Fach)
3 Transport

4 Supported Placements

Page 23

5 Shared Lives

-144
-27

-180

39

6 Independent Domiciliary Care

-202

7 Independent Residential Establishments
(IRE's)

-478

-15.17 Delays in filling posts because of covid 19. Projecting an underspend against agency and
overtime based on current spend.
-10.07 Reduced attendance at day centres resulting in reduction in transport and therefore payments.

Continue to monitor.
Continue to monitor.

-5.10 (£94k) - Current "known" Demands (25 within MTFP currently 27 in year and 26 ongoing) No action needed
includes all inflationary uplift costs
(£83k) - New Service Demand (2 within MTFP (1 High and 1 Lower Cost) - currently 4 in year and
4 ongoing all Lower Cost)
(£20k) - ICF Complex Transition Cases Grant
£23k - Income (Joint funding) (6 within MTFP currently 5 in year and 5 ongoing)
£2k - Supported Living Placements
(£4k) - Transition Adult Services
(£4k) - LD Packages Partnership Fund
10.71 £70k - Current "known" Demands (13 within MTFP currently 15 in year and 15 ongoing)
No action needed
(£22k) - New Service Demand (2 within MTFP currently 3 in year and 3 ongoing)
(£22k) - Sessional Usage - currently lower than anticipated
£13k - Annual recharge increase as demand on service increases
-8.93 Current service demand for service from Framework providers significantly reduced from MTFP
No action needed
budget setting estimates. Weekly hours 2513 rather than 3000 anticipated. Non-Framework
providers picking up service that Framework providers cannot 597hrs@Sept. This has been a
trend through 20/21 and may be an ongoing trend as services evolve through Covid19 impacts.
Income is also impacted as services are cancelled or transferred to other service types
-8.31 Projection is based on current IRE population (163 commissioned beds). There have been a net
reduction due to deaths/discharges since the start of the year. Current Pandemic is impacting on
Care Home admissions so numbers are considerably lower than the anticipated levels within the
MTFP and may be an ongoing trend as services evolve through Covid19 impact.

No action needed

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21 (As at 30 September 2020)
Major Variances
Ref.

Budget Head
8 Children with Disabilities

9 CLA Residential Placement Services

Variance Variance Explanation
Action Taken to address
£'000
%
-128
-17.46 (£66k) - Current "known" Demands (60 within MTFP currently 55 in year and 47 ongoing)
No action needed
(£24k) - New Service Demand (4 within MTFP currently and 1 ongoing)
(£8k) - Recovery of Balances (over contingency levels)
(£14k) - FF MIA new in year grant allocation
(£16k)- Reduced demand on Leisure Link services and their related transport related expenditure.
This has been a trend through 20/21 and may be an ongoing trend as services evolve through
Covid19 impacts
1120
52.56 £745k - Current "known" Demands (11 within MTFP currently 13 in year and 11 ongoing)
Continue to monitor
£375k - New Service Demand (2 within MTFP currently 3 in year and 3 ongoing)
-354

11 CLA Fostering - In House, Kinship &
Emergency/Respite Fostering Services

218

12 Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)

22

Page 24

10 CLA Fostering - Independent Fostering
Agencies (IFA's)

13 Adoption Services

Appendix 3

-24

-17.24 (£324k) - Current "known" Demands (49 within MTFP currently 44 in year and 38 ongoing)
£25k - New Service Demand (3 within MTFP currently 4 'actual' in year and 5 ongoing)
(£55k) - 4c's Commissioning Unit (Levy Income balances 18/19 and 19/20 received)

Continue to monitor

14.33 £82k - In House Fostering Current "known" Demands (45 within MTFP currently 48 in year and 41 Continue to monitor
ongoing)
£6k - In House Fostering New Service Demand (10 within MTFP currently 12 in year and 8
ongoing)
(£69k) - In House One-Off Allowances & Scale Payments (65 within MTFP currently 60 in year and
49 ongoing) and (£2k) - Other Supporting Services
£32k - Kinship Current "known" Demands (36 within MTFP currently 51 in year and 40 ongoing)
£104k - Kinship New Service Demand (4 within MTFP currently 22 in year and 17 ongoing)
£6k - Kinship One-Off Allowances (40 within MTFP currently 73 in year and 57 ongoing)
£6k - CLA Overarching; Respite and emergency Service
£53k - Therapeutic/Psychological & Counselling Services
7.41 Business case approved for additional grade 9 post which has recently been appointed to. Costs
projected from November.
-17.65 (£11k) - Current "known" Demands (14 within MTFP currently 12 in year and 11 ongoing)
(£13k) - New Service Demand (4 within MTFP currently 2 'actual' in year and 4 ongoing)

Continue to monitor .
No action needed

14 School Meals

88

419.05 Loss of income from school meals which is partly being offset by food costs. Includes amounts
that cannot be claimed for providing FSM for the period 01-11/09/2020 and for providing FSM
since that time to pupils who are shielding.

15 Special Tuition

50

28.57 Projection for room hire and transport costs higher than budgeted. The projected overspend is
based on an increase of 50% pupils (23 pupils) from September - March 2021. This is based on
historic trends and may outturn higher or lower depending on the actual number of pupils utilising
Special tuition.

Continue to monitor

16 Integrated Children Centre

26

50.00 Loss of income from room hire due to covid 19.

Continue to monitor

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21 (As at 30 September 2020)
Major Variances
Ref.

Budget Head

17 Corporate Communications
18 Orbit Business Centre
19 Transport

20 Grounds Maintenance

Variance Variance Explanation
£'000
%
26
23.01 Loss of income due to member of staff being on long term sick and additional hours required for
another member of staff
87
-108.75 Loss of conference income due to pandemic.
-141
-7.96 Less term time days than budgeted for (MTFP based on average 190 days mainstream and 179
college), plus we were paying 75% of transport contract costs whilst schools were closed.
Contract savings were projected to be £164k but contract amendments due to additional
requirements has reduced this to £131k. Additionally we have received confirmation that we will
continue to receive the concessionary fares administration grant as per 2019/20 until Welsh
Government undertake discussions of future funding arrangements. Since 3 months notice is
required we have budgeted for 2/3rds of the admin fee received in 19/20 (£36k) since the 3 month
notice period would mean any changes could only take effect at the end of December at the
earliest,
As a result of termination of bus station leases, rental income is down by £8k and departure
charge income is estimated to be down by £24k.
58
4.54 Combination of overtime and security being over budget (ash dieback works required) plus
amendments to projection on recharges (less grass cuts) and fees and charges. The additional
expenditure and loss of income has been partly offset by amendments to expenditure projections.

Page 25

21 Corporate Property & Estates Division

78

22 Planning - Development Control
23 Building Control
24 CCTV

70
30
56

25
26
27
28
29

Parking Services
Civil Parking Enforcement
Revenues
Council Tax Benefit Payments
IT Homeworking Equipment

340
38
479
419
205

14.03 Additional costs incurred for 24hr security at Taff and Crescent Street in Merthyr Vale (April to
July).
41.92 Reduction in Planning fee income due to pandemic.
46.15 Reduction in Building control fee income due to pandemic.
70.89 Decision to reduce staffing has been reversed, so there are unbudgeted staff costs of £77k but
these are offset by a projected reduction in the repair and maintenance budget of £30k and £11k
reduction in broadband and telephone budget.

-92.39
140.74
544.32
6.66
101.00

Replacement cabling required so £19.6k contribution to capital needed.
Reduction in Car Parking income due to pandemic and Working from home policy
Reduction in Civil Parking enforcement notices issued and paid due to pandemic
Loss of all Bailiff & Court Cost recoveries income assumed
Additional claims due to Covid 19
Additional costs IT costs to enable homeworking. Includes hardware costs not eligble for the
Welsh Government Hardship funding, and software (i.e. Microsoft Office 365) costs.

Appendix 3

Action Taken to address
Continue to monitor.
Continue to monitor.
We will continue to monitor the situation.
Staggered opening times for 2 schools has resulted in four
additional buses at a cost of £480 per day. It is assumed
that these costs will be eligible for reimbursement from the
Hardship Fund and will be included in the October 2020
claim.

Some of the lost income can be attributable to covid e.g.
pitch fees and will be included on the loss of income claim to
Welsh Government. We will continue to monitor
No further action required. The site has now been
demolished.
Continue to monitor.
Continue to monitor.
Salary costs will be added back into the MTFP. Continue to
monitor

Continue to monitor and update MTFP accordingly
Continue to monitor.
Continue to monitor.
Continue to monitor.
Hardware costs are considered to be a one off investment,
however, an annual budget will be required for the software
costs. The hardware costs could be funded from the
Authority's investment fund.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Committee Division
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

10th November 2020
Craig Watkins
Planning and Countryside
Strategic
Non Exempt
25th November 2020

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Endorsement of Regional Technical Statement
(RTS) - 2020
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

Minerals Technical Advice Note 1: Aggregates (2004) (MTAN 1) requires the
preparation of Regional Technical Statements (RTS) for the areas covered by both
the South Wales and North Wales Regional Aggregates Working Parties (RAWPs).
The principal objective of the RTS is to provide adequate reserves of aggregate for
construction and other industries in the most sustainable manner reasonably
achievable.

1.2

The second review of the RTS for Wales has taken place, and the methodology has
been amended since the first review to include the consumption of aggregate as well
as the historic pattern of supply. A new sub-regional approach has been introduced
to reflect the fact that aggregates only occur in certain locations which may not
reflect the highest level of consumption, but attempts are made to ensure the most
sustainable approach. Merthyr Tydfil’s annual apportionment for the future provision
of crushed rock aggregates is 0.199 million tonnes (MT), resulting in a 25 year
apportionment of 4.975MT.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1

Cabinet endorsement of the Regional Technical Statement (RTS) 2nd Review
(September 2020) be approved.

Page 27

3.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1

Minerals Technical Advice Note 1: Aggregates (2004) (MTAN 1) requires the
preparation of Regional Technical Statements (RTS) for the areas covered by both
the South Wales and North Wales Regional Aggregates Working Parties (RAWPs).
The original RTS documents for both regions were completed in 2008 and are
required, by MTAN 1, to be reviewed every five years. The First Review was
undertaken in 2013/2014 and this, the Second Review, which commenced in 2018.

3.2

The methodology used in the previous (First) Review, in 2014, had been based
primarily on historical sales averages, combined with an assessment of the various
‘drivers’ of potential future change. For the Second Review, this has been combined
with an attempt to reflect planned future requirements for housing construction
activity, and to avoid perpetuating historical supply patterns in areas where there is
scope to encourage more sustainable patterns of supply.

3.3

Local Development Plans (LDPs) have benefitted from the clear direction that the
RTS has provided on the sustainable approach to mineral development in Wales.
The Replacement Merthyr Tydfil LDP was adopted in January 2020, prior to
completion of this latest RTS review, however the work that was ongoing as part of
the RTS review was closely considered as part of preparation of the Replacement
LDP in order to ensure that there was no conflict between the two documents.

4.0

CALCULATION OF MERTHYR TYDFIL’S APPORTIONMENT

4.1

The calculation of the apportionments set out in the RTS followed a four-stage
process. Each stage and its relevance to Merthyr Tydfil is set out below.

4.2

Stage 1- Setting the National Level for future aggregates provision.
According to Welsh statistics there is a high degree of correlation between housing
completions and aggregate sales. Statistics show that housing accounts for
approximately 30% by value of all new construction. At a national level, therefore,
and on the basis of being consistent in terms of planned provision for both housing
and aggregates, it was agreed that the provision required for aggregates should be
guided by a 30% uplift on historical sales figures.
The National Figure is 20.224Million Tonnes Per Annum (MTPA)

4.3

Stage 2 – Calculation of the Regional Split between North and South Wales.
The national figure, set out in stage one, is split between North and South Wales.
The split is based on historical sales and is 38% North Wales and 62% South Wales.
The South Wales figure is 12.486MTPA.

4.4

Stage 3 -Calculation of Sub-Regional and LPA Apportionments.
South Wales has been split into five sub-regions which reflect distinct market areas,
between which there is relatively little movement of aggregate (see appendix B of the
background papers for a map of the sub-regions). The percentage of historic sales

Page 28

and house build rates for each authority provides the basis for the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) apportionment.
The LPA apportionment is 0.199MT per annum.
4.5

Stage 4 – Sand and Gravel and Crushed Rock total Apportionment.
This final stage took the figures calculated in stage 3 and multiplied them by the
number of years required (25 years for crushed rock) for the LDP allocation. Merthyr
Tydfil has permitted reserves of 120.1MT and this results in an existing landbank of
211.8 years. As a result of this, no further sites are required at this time.
Merthyr Tydfil’s apportionment for consideration in the Local Development Plan is
4.975 MT crushed rock

5.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

5.1

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

6.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives
2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:
 Long term
 Prevention
 Integration
 Collaboration
 Involvement
3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

3 of 4

0 of 4

1 of 4

5 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 5

10 of 10

0 of 10

0 of 10

1 of 1

0 of 1

0 of 1

Summary:
The main positive impacts are that proposal provides adequate reserves of aggregate
for construction and other industries in the most sustainable manner reasonably
achievable, incorporating long term and collaborative ways of working. The proposal
also contributes specifically to the Council’s environmental well-being.

Page 29

There are no negative impacts identified with the proposal.

JUDITH JONES
CHIEF OFFICER PLANNING AND
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES
CABINET MEMBER FOR
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES AND
PLANNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Document(s) Date

Regional Technical
Statements (RTS) for
the North Wales and
South Wales Regional
Aggregate Working
Parties – 2nd Review
(including Appendix B)

September 2020

Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Committee Division
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

12th November 2020
Paul Lewis
Public Protection
Cabinet
Non Exempt
25th November 2020

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Safer Streets Grant – Delegated Authority
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

The Council in partnership with South Wales Police placed a bid for grant money to
the Safer Street Fund to upgrade systems and create resilience in the town centre.

1.2

A total of £513,410 was awarded to the South Wales Police and Crime
Commissioner, this money will be used to upgrade existing CCTV, provide ANPR
(Automatic number plate recognition), Help Stations, Public Address systems,
Deployable CCTV systems, Street Lighting, Alley Gates and a mobile surveillance
vehicle.

1.3

The grant will need to be spent by the 31st March 2021, meaning that the timeline for
completing the tender process will need to be as short as possible. In order to
accomplish this and ensure there is sufficient time for ordering goods and completing
installation by the end date, it will be essential to reduce certain timescales.

1.4

Delegated authority is requested as due to the timescales linked to the assessment
of the tender, the Cabinet report seeking approval for the award would not be taken
to Committee until February 2021. This period limits the time available to complete
the project in line with grant conditions. Delegated authority will allow the
contractor(s) an additional three weeks to achieve our requirements.

Page 31

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1

The delegated authority to allow officer award as detailed in 3.6 of this report, to
meet the timescales necessary for the development of the tender in relation to the
deadlines associated with the Safer Streets Grant be approved.

3.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1

The Council in partnership with South Wales Police placed a bid for grant money to
the Safer Street Fund to upgrade systems and create resilience in the town centre.
The Safer Streets Fund aims to stop offences that blight communities and cause
misery to victims from happening in the first place

3.2

A total of £513,410 was awarded to the South Wales Police and Crime
Commissioner, this money will be used to upgrade existing CCTV, provide ANPR
(Automatic number plate recognition), Help Stations, Public Address systems,
Deployable CCTV systems, Street Lighting, Alley Gates and a mobile surveillance
vehicle.

3.3

In order to purchase the equipment and installation, the Council will be required to go
to tender for the bulk of the requirements. The opportunity will be advertised as an
‘open’ tender in the European Journal.

3.4

The grant will need to be spent by the 31 st March 2021, meaning that the timeline for
completing the tender process will need to be as short as possible. In order to
accomplish this and ensure there is sufficient time for ordering goods and completing
installation by the end date, it will be essential to reduce certain timescales.

3.5

Delegated authority is requested as due to the timescales linked to the assessment
of the tender, the Cabinet report seeking approval for the award would not be taken
to Committee until February 2021. This period limits the time available to complete
the project in line with grant conditions. Delegated authority will allow the
contractor(s) an additional three weeks to achieve our requirements.

3.6

The Chief Officer for Community Regeneration, Chief Finance Officer and the
Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Public Protection will have responsibility for
signing off the tender award.

4.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

4.1

Funding has been secured through the Safer Streets Grant.

Page 32

5.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

o of 4

0 of 4

4 of 4

0 of 5

0 of 5

5 of 5

0 of 10

0 of 10

10 of 10

0 of 1

0 of 1

1 of 1

2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:






Long term
Prevention
Integration
Collaboration
Involvement

3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity
Summary:

This report provides information to Elected Members regarding the current position of the
project and that a decision is to be made under delegated authority. As such the
information in this report has neither a positive nor negative impact on our well-being
objectives, five ways of working, protected characteristics, nor biodiversity.
The IIA will be updated and applied throughout the lifetime of the project, this includes
being completed prior to delegated decisions are made.

ALYN OWEN
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS
CABINET MEMBER FOR
REGENERATION AND PUBLIC
PROTECTION

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Document(s) Date

Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

3rd November 2020
Rachel Grey/Lowri Morgan
Social Services
Non-Exempt
25th November 2020

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Cwm Taf Carers Annual Report 2019-20
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

Prior to the implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing (SSWB) Act 2014,
Cwm Taf University Health Board (CTUHB) were given a lead role under the Welsh
Government’s Carers Measure to work with partners including Local Authorities,
Third Sector and importantly, Carers themselves. Submission of an Annual Report
to Welsh Government was required, providing an overview of the activities
undertaken as part of the implementation of the Carers Measure. Although the
Carers Measure has been repealed, the requirement for an Annual report has
continued for 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.

1.2

This report outlines the activity undertaken across Cwm Taf Morgannwg during
2019/20. As in previous years the Annual Report, attached as Appendix 1, which
has been submitted to Welsh Government (due to a misalignment with timelines for
Local Authority cabinets). Welsh Government will then be informed of the Local
Authority cabinet decision.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS that:

2.1

The contents of this report be noted and agreed.

2.2

The annual report, which is also being submitted for approval by the Cabinet in
Rhondda Cynon Taf and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board, be
approved.

Page 35

3.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1

As part of the Regional Work programme of the Cwm Taf Social Services and
Wellbeing Partnership Board, a new Cwm Taf Carers Strategy was developed in
2016 to replace the separate plans of partner organisations. Working with partners
across Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and including Carers themselves, the
Cwm Taf Carers Strategy 2016-2019 covers Carers of all ages.

3.2

The strategy is currently under review and now includes Bridgend as part of our new
regional footprint.

3.3

The Cwm Taf Morgannwg steering group have met several times within 2019/20 to
draft an updated version of the carers’ strategy. Unfortunately, due to COVID-19
restrictions and Government guidance impacting on the group’s ability to meet this
work remains outstanding.

3.4

The Aims for the reviewed Cwm Taf Carers Strategy are:






Aim 1: Identifying Carers of all ages and recognising their contributions.
Aim 2: Providing up to date, relevant and timely information, advice & assistance
to Carers of all ages.
Aim 3: Providing support, services & training to meet the needs of Carers of all
ages.
Aim 4: Giving Carers of all ages a voice, with more choice & control over their
lives.
Aim 5: Working together to make the most of our resources for the benefit of
Carers of all ages.

3.5

Having reviewed current services, building on the progress made implementing the
Carers Measure from 2012-2015 and taking into account the requirements of the
SSWB Act as well as the views expressed during engagement and consultation with
Carers and staff, a statement of intent for carers has been developed in partnership
between Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB the three Local Authorities; Merthyr Tydfil
County Borough Council (MTCBC) , Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC), and
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council (RCTCBC) and implemented until the
revised strategy is complete.

3.6

The Statement of Intent supports delivery against the three national priorities (as
identified by Welsh Government) outlined below:




Supporting life alongside caring – all Carers must have reasonable breaks from
their caring role to enable them to maintain their capacity to care, and to have a
life beyond caring.
Identifying and recognising Carers – fundamental to the success of delivering
improved outcomes for Carers is the need to improve Carer’s recognition of their
role and to ensure they can access the necessary support.
Providing information, advice and assistance – it is important that Carers receive
the appropriate information and advice where and when they need it.

Page 36

All projects identified for utilisation of the Welsh Government carers funding awarded
to Local Health Boards in 2019-20 were required to meet at least one of these
criteria.
3.7

Throughout 2019/20, partners in the region built upon the success of the previous
year and continued to work collaboratively together and with other stakeholders in
improving recognition of Carers and providing appropriate information and support.
The Annual Report provides an opportunity to reflect on the progress made to date
and looks ahead to the challenges and opportunities we will face in 2020/21.

3.8

Key areas of work have included:





3.9

Working with partners to deliver the annual Action Plan.
Continued work with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Partnership Group to oversee
implementation of the Strategy, reporting to the SSWB Partnership Board.
The provision of Carer Aware training (both via e-learning and face to face) to
further expand the knowledge of both Carers Champions and staff throughout the
Cwm Taf region.
Appointing a Carers Officer within the Local Authority.

Third sector partnership work within Merthyr Tydfil included:







Primary Care Cluster GPSO’s who engage, signpost, offer advice and work with
patients to influence cultural and behavioural change for service users within a
Primary Care setting.
VAMT community coordinators providing information, advice and signposting to
local community groups, activities and services.
The establishment of a Merthyr Tydfil dementia support group.
Continuation of the Merthyr and the Valleys Mind Carers STAR Project.
Funding secured by Citizens Advice Bureau to create the CAB for Carers project.
Funding secured by Cancer Aid Merthyr Tydfil to create their project Caring for
Cancer Carers.

4.0

NEXT STEPS

4.1

Welsh Government has stipulated, with regards to the Carers allocation for 2020/21:
“In relation to Identification and Recognition: It is expected that you work with
partners to implement a scheme which supports GP practices to develop their Carer
awareness and ways of working to support Carers.”
In response to this Cwm Taf Morgannwg has worked to implement an accreditation
scheme with Agored Cymru in GP practices. This has now been rolled out in 15
General Practitioner Surgeries across Cwm Taf Morgannwg, of these 15 we have
certificated 8 learners with the qualification. In addition, the training has been rolled
out to Healthcare Support Workers, Pharmacies and Dental Practices

Page 37

4.2

Welsh Government also stipulated:
“In relation to Information, Advice and Assistance: Discharge from hospital has been
identified as an area where support for Carers needs to be improved. There is a
need to improve IAA provided to all Carers following discharge from hospital of
someone who is cared for. This includes involving Carers in developing any
discharge plans.”
As of March 2019, we have piloted a Carers Hospital Discharge Project alongside
Citizen’s Advice Merthyr Tydfil and Hafal. The project has been successful.

5.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1

There are no financial implications aligned to this report. The Cwm Taf Carers
Partnership oversees the use of the Welsh Government transitional funding,
reporting to the SSWB Transformation Leadership Group and the SSWB Partnership
Board.

6.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

6.1
1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

2 of 4

0 of 4

2 of 4

4 of 5

0 of 5

1 of 5

2 of 10

0 of 10

8 of 10

0 of 1

0 of 1

1 of 1

2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:






Long term
Prevention
Integration
Collaboration
Involvement

3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity

Summary:
The main positive impacts are to support carers to maintain their caring role.
There are no negative impacts.

LISA CURTIS JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

Page 38

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES
CABINET MEMBER FOR
SOCIAL SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Document(s) Date

Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers End of Year Progress Report 2019 – 2020
Eligible activity includes:
1) Supporting carers in general practice - working with your partners, through the primary care
clusters, to implement a scheme that supports health professionals working in primary care and
community care to develop their carer awareness and understanding of how to identify carers, the issues
that carers face and ways of working to better support carers; and
2) Discharge from hospital planning - taking steps to support and engage carers in the patient’s
discharge planning, for example better information, advice and assistance (IAA) provided to all carers
when the person they care for is discharged from hospital.
This form can be used as a template for the evidence you provide of the activities undertaken to meet
the aims outlined in the funding requirements.
A number of questions were included in the annex of the letter and are illustrated below.
1) Supporting carers in general practice
What action/ activity have you undertaken to work with partners to support health professionals working
in primary care and community care to develop their carer awareness and understanding of:


how to identify carers,



the issues that carers face and



ways of working to better support carers; and

Action taken
During 2019/20, Bridgend County Borough Council, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Rhondda
Cynon Taf County Borough Council and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board have built upon
the success of the previous year and continued to work collaboratively in improving support, information
and recognition of Carers, whilst making best use of a wide range of knowledge, expertise and support
services.
This transitional year for Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board has seen the development of new
relationships and partnerships across this new region.
Current services for Carers in Cwm Taf Morgannwg are provided by a range of organisations in the
statutory and Third Sector. As well as accessing general services like GPs in primary care available to
everyone, there are also specific services to support Carers, including young Carers and young adult
Carers. These include:






In RCT, a Carers Support Project run by the Local Authority.
Services commissioned from the Third Sector including Action for Children, Barnardos and Age
Connects Morgannwg.
A network of Carers Champions in settings across the health sector.
In Merthyr, services to support Carers were commissioned from third sector organisations.
Carers Trust South East Wales providing Information and Advice to Carers across Bridgend.
Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 41

- £1m LHB funding
1




Bridgend Carers Centre offering support through their Carer Link workers in GP practices in Bridgend.
Carers Hospital Discharge project across the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Region.

The Cwm Taf Morgannwg regions continues to have representation at the COLIN meetings with a
representative from Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, Bridgend County Borough Council
and/or Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board attending.
Interlink RCT and VAMT continue to organise the Carers Provider Network, which gives organisations
the platform to raise queries, gaps and exchange of good practice.
Throughout 2019/20, Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board, Bridgend County Borough Council,
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council have sustained
the success of the previous year and continued to work collaboratively in improving support, information
and recognition of Carers. This Cwm Taf Morgannwg End of Year Report has highlighted the key areas
of work and provided examples of the progress made.
The transitional funding to support Carers provided by Welsh Government since for 2016/17to support
the implementation of the SSWB Act is very welcome as there had been concerns regarding the loss of
momentum and the lack of resources available to achieve identified actions.
It is essential to prevent any negative impact on Carers services and support and ensure the continued
development and raising awareness of Carers throughout the region, meeting the increased
responsibilities for partners under the SSWB Act.
£25,000.00 of the WG Carers funding was allocated through an application process to the Third Sector.
Organisations were able to bid upto £5,000.00 of projects to engage with Carers of all ages. The
successful organisations were:
Organisation Name
Challenging Behaviour Support CIC
Cancer Aid Merthyr Tydfil

Merthyr and the Valley Mind

Follow Your Dreams
Techtivity

Project Description
Fortnightly parent Carers support session in RCT and
there has been an increase in beneficiaries.
Caring for Cancer Carers has undertaken:
 A Carers clinic providing information, support and
advice one afternoon a week;
 A Carers only clinic providing complementary
therapy;
 A Carers support group – facilitated by a
registered BACP counsellor providing an evening
group support;
 These services are all currently running and are at
full capacity.
 Going forward we aim to continue to provide
services as required for one to one support, and
launch a new Carers group every 8 weeks. Once
a carers group has completed the 8 weeks of
facilitated group support they will be able to
continue to use the centre of excellence to arrange
informal group support meetings.
Carers STAR Project in Merthyr Tydfil have run
counselling sessions with all places allocated and
people are currently working through their sessions.
Parent Carers Information Event in RCT
Caring for you in Bridgend have a weekend of
wellbeing activities at Tyn Cellar Farm in Margam,
including holistic treatments, yoga, and a sound bath.
Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 42

- £1m LHB funding
2

Citizen Advice Bureau Merthyr Tydfil
CASE (Care and Support Each Other) RCT

The Grapevine

CAB 4 Carers, piloting beginning Carers Assessments
Social Learning Curriculum: Christmas Craft,
Mindfulness in the Park and a bowling night for Young
Adult Carers.
Rolling out to RCT and Merthyr Tydfil

Through this process additional WG Carers funding was allocated from the Young Carers allocation to:
Organisation Name
RCTCBC
RCTCBC

Project Description
Young Carers Recognition Event
Young Carers Leaflet

As this End of Year report demonstrates, we have continued to address the needs of Carers across the
region to improve outcomes for them and their families.
For 2020/21, we have run an application process for the Welsh Government Carers funding. A multiagency panel met on the 16th March 2020, consisting of representatives from VAMT, Interlink, BCBC,
RPB and CTMUHB, to discuss applications to the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Grant 2020/21. 18
applications were received in total with 6 successful organisations for funding in 2020/21.
We look forward to working in new partnerships as Cwm Taf Morgannwg in 2020/21.

Please explain:
How you have worked with partners to implement and deliver improved support for carers
The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Steering Group
The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Steering Group which was established in 2016 and overseen the
implementation of the Cwm Taf Carers Strategy 2016-19 across Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf,
including the development and delivery of an annual Action Plan, is currently being reviewed by the
Regional Lead for the Regional Partnership Board.
The review includes group membership and reporting mechanism. The Group has met several times
throughout 2019/20.
Currently membership consists of: Bridgend County Borough Council, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough
Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, VAMT, BAVO, Interlink, CAB RCT, Merthyr and
Valleys MIND, Carer representative and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board.
Statement of Intent for Carers
Following the end of the Cwm Taf Carers Strategy on the 30th March 2019, for this transitional year
following the merger which saw the creation of Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board, the
Statement of Intent for Carers was produced in partnership.
We await guidance from Welsh Government on their proposed Action Plan and the Ministerial Advisory
Group as to whether we produce a regional Carers Strategy or a regional Action Plan to implement WG
proposals.

Statement of Intent
Carers.docx

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 43

- £1m LHB funding
3

Let’s Talk Public Engagement Events
As part of a Health Board programme of public engagement events, a series of events were held in
February 2020 with Carers being one of the main topics for members of the public to discuss. Health
colleagues attended to answer any queries with information provided by partners for distribution.
These events were held across Cwm Taf Morgannwg and engaged with over 100 people. As well as
members of the public we engaged and promoted Carers services with Councillors, School Teachers,
Leisure Staff, Third Sector and colleagues from across the Health Board.
Young Carers Cookery Classes
From working with colleagues in Merthyr Tydfil, it has highlighted the need to engage with young Carers.
Working with Barnardos, Merthyr Tydfil and Public Health, Cwm Taf Morgannwg are in the process of
delivering cookery classes for 10 young Carers.
This pilot course is funded by Welsh Government Carer funding Cwm Taf Morgannwg and accredited
by AGORED.
Although still in its infancy, the training is already proving to be a success. Young Carers have fully
engaged and are enthusiastic to learn a new life skill that will assist them in their caring role.
The training covers basic food hygiene, health & safety and budgets. In addition to learning a new skill
the training sessions have also given the young carers the opportunity to engage with one another in a
group session.
It is reported that young Carers miss on average 48 days of school a year. By engaging them and giving
them life skills this will boost their confidence, give them a sense of inclusion and hopefully inspire them
to continue learning.
Going forward this opportunity will be provided for young carers in Rhondda Cynon Taf and Bridgend.
Leisure
Cwm Taf Morgannwg has been in talks with Rhydycar Leisure Centre, Merthyr Tydfil and are currently
in the process of offering Carers a 40% discount for use of facilities.
This will be of great benefit to carers who may not necessarily have disposable income to have access
to leisure facilities. It’s widely acknowledged that exercise can help alleviate mental health issues and
this discount gives Carers of all ages the ability to engage in social activities and give them a life outside
of their caring role.
Upper Rhondda, Taf, Cynon and Merthyr Tydfil Dementia Support Groups
Replicating the good practice of Carers and the cared for coming together, additional Dementia Groups
have now been set up in Rhydyfelin and Pontypridd Library. Some of the groups have extra activities
helpful to provide more meaningful activities for Carers attending their sessions. Activity sessions see
Carers interacting with each other and stimulate discussion.
Upper Rhondda run various sessions, for example a Krafty Knitters group in Ysbyty George Thomas to
engage the community including Carers plus a gardening activity for Carers to get involved in. There is
a Tuesday morning social for all older people. There is also a quarterly Carers session held in the area.
They have also started a Dementia Friendly Cinema session in the Phoenix, Ton Pentre, where classic
movies are played.
A cognitive stimulation therapy group has also been set up for Carers to attend in the Taf area. The
Taf area has also purchased a Virtual Reality headset which will be used in part for Carers to gain a
Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 44

- £1m LHB funding
4

greater understanding of the potential experience of individuals living with Dementia through relevant
apps. There is Support Group in Pontypridd Museum and a Carers Group in Rhydyfelin Library.
Rhondda and Taf have set up a short term loan service for memory aids/telecare for Carers to use
through the Dementia Team. This new project is very exciting and will benefit Carers who will not
have to make a purchase until they have used that equipment and know that it will aid the cared for.
Two memory café’s for the patients and Carers were set up in Merthyr Tydfil and Cynon. The
Dementia Advisors have worked extensively with all of their patients and Carers, to meet once a
month and give the Carers respite from their role in a supported environment and give them that peer
support which has proven to be invaluable in other areas. The patient’s and Carers have been heavily
involved in what they would like the outcome to be and held in the sessions. Activities have been
purchased for both the Carers and patient’s to be part of in the sessions. Dementia Advisors have
linked with other agencies to provide relevant information to give to people and advice.
Unfortunately, recently the decision was made to dissolve the Group in Merthyr Tydfil due to nonattendance.
The Cynon Group is for individuals with memory difficulties (both diagnoses and undiagnosed) and
Carers to attend. We offer activities, information sessions, advice and signposting from professionals
working in the Memory Assessment Service and Older Persons Mental Health Team. The poster is
attached.

NEW memory lane
poster.doc

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board has supported Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council in
shortlisting and interviewing to reappoint to their Carers Co-ordinator post.
There has been a delay in the recruitment due to the Covid 19 outbreak.
Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers Residential
Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers had the opportunity to engage in a residential stay. This was delivered via
PGL Travel Ltd which is the UK’s leading outdoor education provider, delivering inspirational learning
through adventure. This was significant for those that attended as many young carers do not have the
same opportunities as their peers to have a ‘holiday’. They engaged in a number of activities including
archery, raft racing and abseiling; all of which are designed to build young people’s resilience and
confidence. This takes place through working with Barnardos.
Merthyr and the Valleys Mind
Through support from across Cwm Taf Morgannwg, the Carers STAR Project is run by Merthyr and the
Valleys Mind. The project is designed to optimise the quality of life and wellbeing for Carers, which in
turn will support them to continue to be effective in their role, as long as that’s right for them.
The STAR Project engages with Young Adult Carers (18 -25 years old) and Adult Carers (25 years+) in
providing support and assistance to adult Carers living in Merthyr Tydfil. The project provides
information and advice and can signpost Carers to a range of other local services. They work with
Carers on a one-to-one basis following their own organisational mission of always providing quality
services that promote positive mental health and wellbeing.
Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 45

- £1m LHB funding
5

The Carers STAR principles are:





They want to make life better for Carers and to help them to stay well.
They want to give people a stronger voice and more control over their caring role.
They want to make sure people get the help and support they need to lead the best quality of life
that they can.
They want to get the right service at the right time.

Mind strive to ensure that the Carer gains recognition and respect they deserve by ensuring they are
getting their voices heard, by keeping Carers engaged in the decision making process with the services
they are accessing, and ensuring that their views and wishes are taken into account. They work closely
with partners particularly focusing on the actions required to gain the desired outcomes of their Carers.
They do this by the use of the Carers STAR assessment tool to action plan with the Carer to help focus
on their wellbeing, additionally ensuring they are focussed on getting their voice is heard to achieve the
right help at the right time.
Bridgend Carers Centre Link Workers Project
Cwm Taf Morgannwg agreed to fund this project for an additional year with the Carers Welsh
Government funding. Three integrated Carers Officers (Carers Link) (3 x 0.8FTE, 4 days a week) are
based at the three Bridgend network teams – North, East and West. The Carers Links work proactively with GPS in each network to improve Carer recognition. GPs and District Nurses identify
Carers and have access to this pathway. They also carryout a ‘What Matters’ conversation and collect
information towards a Carers Assessment, give information, advice and assistance to newly identified
Carers.
Bridgend County Borough Council
Following a lengthy period of consultation with all stakeholders in 2019, Bridgend County Borough
Council and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board had commissioned Carers Trust South
East Wales to deliver a Bridgend Carers Wellbeing Service. The wellbeing scheme deliver community
based services and support, going forward they will work closely with the CTMHB co ordinator to
support the GP work and work with social work teams to help identify and support Carers through what
matters conversations.
Several information events for Carers and professionals.
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council has provided the update below:
The attached the report is from the Adult Carers Residential held in October 2019.

RCT Respite Gower
Getaway.docx

Whilst on the Residential they took the opportunity to produce a short film about Carers. The film can
be viewed by visiting:
https://drive.google.com/open?id=1GsjGFO1oza3JgPpNwiGz3A0NjQVBfxTZ

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 46

- £1m LHB funding
6

Leadership
A new strategic leadership post – Service Manager for Carers – was created at the start of the financial
year, with an appointment start date in June 2019. The post has responsibility for all carers, including
young carers, sibling carers, young adult carers, parent carers and adult carers.
The key priorities for the Service Manager this financial year is to improve our processes around IAA,
carer assessments and support services for carers, engaging with carers to ensure they have an active
voice in service developments and raise the profile of carers across Rhondda Cynon Taf through staff
training, representation on regional Boards and managing the Carers Support Project.
Restructure
Our Carer Support Project (CSP) was restructured at the start of the and in particular this has
streamlined the access pathways to IAA for carers of all ages. The CSP is now a support only project
with the assessment for young carers located within the children’s IAA service. Young carers now benefit
from an experienced assessor with the same pathway as other children services functions.
The CSP remit has been widened to include support for young carers with plans in place for our third
sector young carers support provider, Action for Children, to co-locate with the CSP in early 2020. This
is a great example for joint working and co-production as combining service resources in this way is
already allowing us to offer more to young carers. Significant investment from RCT Council has been
secured in order to create a dedicated Carers Hub in Pontypridd. The investment will be spent to
redevelop the building to allow for a multipurpose room to be created at the front with offices for CSP
and Action for Children staff at the back. The space will be used for events, activities and informal dropin sessions for carers of all ages. ICF money has also been secured in order to furnish the space and
purchase equipment to allow it to be used for a wide range of events.
Carers Support Project (CSP)
The CSP continues to deliver high quality information, assistance, advice and signposting to carers
throughout Rhondda Cynon Taf. In 19/20, CSP provided a total of 125 training sessions, workshops and
events to adult Carers, which resulted in 2025 Carer attendances.
Carer attendances have been significantly affected by the floods and Covid-19.
The variety of support offered by the service aims to best support Carers with varying circumstances
and needs, providing them with information, advice and signposting, whilst supporting a life outside of
their caring role.
The project offers regular support groups every month with additional one-off day trips, workshops and
training events planned on a quarterly basis. The project has secured additional funding to provide three
residential stays this financial year – one for adult carers, one for young adult carers and one for young
carers split into younger and older children.
Carer Assessments
One of our key priorities this financial year is to increase uptake of carer assessments and improve the
assessment process.
We have engaged with carers using a Community of Enquiry approach in August 2019 to get a better
picture of what the barriers to carer assessments are. We have used the same approach to engage with
our staff working in social care to discover what they perceive as the barriers.
A working group has been set up, consisting of social care staff from across adult and children services,
to use the information gathered through engagement to create an action plan. A pilot was implemented
in December 2019 to test out new staff guidance and assessment forms for carer assessments. This is
currently being evaluated.
Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 47

- £1m LHB funding
7

Young carers and young adult carers (YACs)
We are funding a 20-hour post to work specifically with young adult carers (YAC) aged 18 to 25. Our
primary focus is to improve emotional wellbeing and resilience. The YACs have their own constituted
group called CASE through which they are able to apply for external funding for activities.
Our young carers support, which is provided via Action for Children, run regular age-specific groups in
each of the three localities (Rhondda, Cynon and Taf) for young carers. There are plans to co-locate
Action for Children with CSP to improve working links, create efficiencies and develop co-produce intergenerational activities. We maintain a specific assessment worker for young carers, who is also
responsible for reviewing the support plans.
Engagement
In addition to the Community of Enquiry engagement event held in August, we are planning a
#WhatMatters engagement campaign for carers during November. This campaign, supported by
SCWDP, will be delivered by the CSP by working in partnership with a community art organisation.
Carers were encouraged to tell us what mattered most to them in their caring role by creating art works
at several events during November, including a Wellbeing Tree, an upcycled coffee table and a rap
performance. A visual artist brought all the feedback together on a poster, which will be displayed in the
new Carers Hub. This poster is acting as a visual business plan and has informed grant applications
and actions for the coming financial year.

How you have measured success using qualitative and quantitative data, (including the number of
General Practices registered/compliant)
Annual Action Plans
The Carers Action Plan is not a fixed and final plan but a framework which sets out which has and will
be taken forward over 2019/20. The Action plan is developed with detail key actions, lead
responsibilities, timescales, resource implications and performance measures, which will focus on the
outcomes we want to achieve.

March 2020 v1 Cwm
Taf Morgannwg Carers Action Plan.docx

Outcomes we want to achieve and monitoring progress
The success of this Action Plan and the benefits it delivers will be reviewed regularly. It will be a
partnership plan and a variety of staff within a wide range of sectors will be responsible for working in
collaboration to implement it effectively.
An annual report on progress will be reported to the Cwm Taf Morgannwg APDIG, as well as the
individual organisations i.e. the three Local Authorities, the Health Board and Welsh Government.
Bridgend Carers Centre Link Workers Project
Quarterly reports are submitted and we are currently digesting this information.

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 48

- £1m LHB funding
8

Feedback from carers who have accessed and used these services.
Case Study:
Carer presented to GP surgery with her husband. Husband has dementia and becoming increasingly
aggressive towards wife.
Background
Wife has been caring for her husband who suffers with dementia. Lately husband become more
aggressive with wife. Wife is at crisis point and requires assistance.
Action
Wife identifies a Carer champion poster in the waiting room and asks receptionist to explain what a
Carer champion is. After the receptionist explained the role of a Carer champion, wife opens up and
lets the receptionist know how difficult things are at the moment but asks not for the receptionist to
mention anything about the way she’s feeling In front of her husband as this would annoy him.
Carer champion writes the wife’s concerns into the patient’s notes section on the computer. When the
couple go to see the GP the GP is able to mention that maybe they could both do with some respite
and some additional support at home.
As this conversation is instigated by the GP the husband agrees to some additional intervention.
Recommendation
Carer champion gives couple information regarding third sector organisations who would be able to
support them in the community.
Husband now has carers to sit with him twice a week which enables his wife to have some free time
and socialise.
Local support groups are attended by both so they are able to meet others who may be in a similar
position.
On returning to the GP surgery the wife expressed her gratitude to the carer champion stating the
intervention has had a positive impact on her health & wellbeing and also her mental health. Her
husband’s mood has improved as he is also able to venture out and socialise.

Specific questions to be addressed:
What awareness raising has been undertaken with practice staff (all professions) on the needs of carers,
including young carers?
Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Co-ordinator
In Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board, we have a Carers Co-ordinator who has attended
public events (Health & Wellbeing Month, Information Stalls), produced promotional materials and
merchandise and attended Senior Nurse meetings to discuss the role of a Carer and organised the
annual conference. The Carers Co-ordinator has also attended Nurse Induction sessions for all new
nurses joining Cwm Taf University Health Board.
With confirmation of funding for 2019/20 from Welsh Government, this post has been extended to the
31st March 2020.
Carers Conference
In June 2019 CTM held its annual Carers conference.

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 49

- £1m LHB funding
9

The event was attended by over 80 colleagues from across the Health Board and over 20
organisations were able to hold information stands. The day was a huge success with many guests
expressing how informative it was and good for networking.

carers report
2019.docx

Awareness Sessions
Cwm Taf Morgannwg has made progress in raising the awareness of Carers of all ages through
graduate nurse induction days. Working in partnership with University of South Wales, Rhondda Cynon
Taf County Borough Council and Citizens Advice Bureau Merthyr Tydfil, we have developed an holistic
training session for graduate nurses and qualified nurses.
This will enable new employees to gain a better understanding of challenges faced by Carers of all ages
and the support services available to them, not only from health but the Local Authority and third sector
organisations. We hope this training is a success and can be developed further. This is also an
opportunity for staff to enrol as Carer champions.
Cwm Taf Morgannwg Intranet/internet page
Cwm Taf Morgannwg now have a designated Carers page in the intranet for internal staff to access the
latest information, advice and support. We recognise an organisation of our multitude have Carers and
promote the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Staff Carers Policy.
The site is a point of contact for staff Carers so they too can access support services.
GP Support Officers (GPSO)
In Merthyr Tydfil Primary Care Cluster they have GPSO’s who engage, signpost, offer advice and work
with patients to influence cultural and behavioural change for service users within a Primary Care setting.
They advise/assess service users and address social issues and offer support in correlation with the
social services and wellbeing act. They promote independence and enable service users to take
responsibility for their own health and wellbeing. GPSO’s support the reduction of attendance within
general practice for non-medical intervention.
Referrals from the GPSO’s include to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and the Third Sector.
GPSO’s, during consultations, have often identified Carers who have not identified themselves as a
Carers (they are a family member that feel it is their duty to look after their relatives). This cohort of
service users were not claiming carers allowance or receiving any support from any groups, such as
Alzheimer’s or Stroke Society.
GPSO’s have been able to support these Carers by identifying what is causing stress and putting some
extra support and ensuring the correct financial assistance are put in place. They also ensure links with
the relevant agencies and particularly ensuring the required adaptations are made at home.
Kier Hardie Health Park GP Practice
A GP in Kier Hardie Health Park nominated his receptionist Judith Cullen, who has undertaken the
AGORED training and is a Carers Champion, for the Support Staff of the Year at the South Wales Argus
National Award. Judith won the award based on the impact she has made in her Carers Champion role.
A link to this great success: https://newsquestevents.co.uk/swa-health-care-awards/

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 50

- £1m LHB funding
10

How many General Practices / health centres have implemented Investors in Carers, something similar,
or are planning to implement this accredited scheme?
AGORED
Cwm Taf Morgannwg are currently delivering the AGORED Supporting Carers training. We are engaged
with 15 General Practitioner Surgeries throughout Merthyr, Rhondda Cynon Taf and Bridgend. Of these
15 we have certificated 8 learners with the qualification. In addition, we have also rolled out the training
to Healthcare Support Workers, Pharmacies and Dental Practices.
The training enables learners to be more Carer aware and gives them tools and techniques that will
assist them to identify Carers. The benefit of this training is Carers can receive support and advice
before they reach crisis point, or before the Carer of cared for requires hospital admission.
We post regular updates on social media and internally to inform Carers what is available to them, we
also have a designated Carers information page on the Intranet which includes information for staff
carers. This also promotes and encourages Carer champions to be identified throughout clinical
settings, we currently have 61 Carer Champions registered who are sent regular bulletins on carer
events and information which they can promote in their area of work.
The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Co-ordinator has worked to reinvigorate and recruit Carers Champions
on the Wards.
How and what specific support are General Practice staff providing to carers?
GP Leaflets
The Carers Co-ordinator has designed and distributed Carer booklets to GP Practices which has a
registration form enabling a Carer to complete and hand to their Carer Champion. This has encouraged
Carers to self-identify and engage with their GP surgery.
Carer Notice Boards
Each surgery signed up to the Agored training is given a Carers Notice Board that is updated by the
Carers Champion monthly. There is also a Carers Champion poster to notify patients who is their Carers
Champion.
Carers Champion Badges
Each Carers Champion wears a badge so they are easily recognisable to patients.
Primary Care Communications Lead
The Carers Co-ordinator has liaised with the Primary Carer Communications Lead in promoting the
good practice and case studies of the Carer related work being undertaken in GP surgeries across
Cwm Taf Morgannwg.
What are the tangible outcomes for carers?
All of the positive outcomes as previously mentioned throughout the report.
Following AGORED training, one GP surgery in Pontyclun had 57 Carers registered in their system in
September 2018. Following the Carers Co-ordinator involvement, they now have 147 Carers registered.
What signposting arrangements are in place within the General Practice to enable carers to access other
support where needed e.g. third sector helplines, websites or local carers services?

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 51

- £1m LHB funding
11

Each GP surgery that has a designated Carer champion has been issued with a Carers notice board.
This is regularly updated by the carer champion with information on what events or services are being
held in their locality. They also have posters displaying who they Carer champion is for their surgery.
The carer’s coordinator also sends ad-hoc information they may find beneficial.
If there is a specific request that carer champions may not know where to signpost they are able to
contact the carer coordinator for advice.
There are also community coordinators in each GP surgery which Carer champions are able to
signpost Carers for further information and advice.
GP surgeries also use their television monitors to inform patients of Carer services.

2) Discharge from hospital planning
What action/ activity have you undertaken to support and engage carers in the patient’s discharge
planning? For example: better information, advice and assistance (IAA) provided to all carers when the
person they care for is discharged from hospital.

Action taken
Carers Hospital Discharge Project
We have worked with RCTCBC, MTCBC, Interlink and VAMT to enable a Carers Hospital Discharge
Project to be piloted in Royal Glamorgan Hospital, Prince Charles Hospital, Ysbyty Cwm Cynon and
Ysbyty Cwm Rhondda. Citizen’s Advice Merthyr Tydfil and Hafal will offer a service to Carers – staff,
patient or visitor – to give the right information at the right time to support them in their caring role.
This new service commenced March 2019.
To date a total of 387 new Carers have been identified in a hospital setting combined.
Citizen Advice Merthyr Tydfil end of year report:

CAB4CARERS Full
year report completed.pdf

Hafal’s end of year reports:

YCR Statistics APR RGH Statistics APR
19_MAR 2020.doc 19_MAR 2020.doc

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 52

- £1m LHB funding
12

Please explain:
How you have worked with partners to implement and deliver improved support for carers
By increasing our network we have been able to establish good working partnerships with Local
Authority and third sector organisations.
We are currently working in partnership the RCT local authority and Citizens Advice Bureau Merthyr
Tydfil to deliver a Carer awareness session for qualified nurses. The intention is to identify what
issues clinical staff encounter and who is the most appropriate person to signpost to.
For young Carers we are working in partnership with Barnardos and Public Health to deliver an
accredited cookery class. By building up a trusted relationship with the young Carers we will be better
equipped to identify what matters them and how we can collectively support them further.
On Carers rights day we secure information stands in each of our general hospitals, third sector
organisations are invited to man an information stand during this day/week so they have the
opportunity to promote their services to Carers.
It’s imperative that Health, Local Authority ad third sector organisations work together as the demand
to meet Carers needs cannot be achieved in silo.

How you have measured success using qualitative and quantitative data, (including the number of
General Practices registered/compliant)
Throughout Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and Bridgend there is a total of 80 General
Practitioners. All were sent letters inviting them to nominate a Carer champion and the opportunity to
undertake the AGORED training.
We had an initial response from 18 requesting more information. From these, 10 practices enrolled
staff to undertake the training, in total 13 staff (with some practices putting two through training).
To date we have successfully certificated 8 learners and the remainder are continuing.
We use an in-house spreadsheet that is regularly updated to track the learner’s progress.
In addition we send letters to all 80 General Practitioners on a regular basis to try to engage.
Feedback from learners indicates the learning has given them the confidence to approach a what
matters conversation with Carers and they feel more confident identifying Carers. Largely due to the
training course they are able to signpost Carers for additional support and advice.

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 53

- £1m LHB funding
13

Feedback from carers who have accessed and used these services.
From the Carers Hospital Discharge Project from Hafal and Citizen Advice Merthyr Tydfil:

Case studies.docx

CAB for Carers Case
studies.pdf

Specific questions to be addressed:
Have hospital procedures regarding patient discharge been adapted, or introduced, to improve staff
awareness of, and input from carers?
Cwm Taf Morgannwg Stay Well @ Home team are investigating how they can adapt their policies so
they can assist not only the service user but also the Carer. This is currently only in discussion mode
but we are hopeful that going forward clinical staff can look take a holistic approach where Carers are
very much involved and supported to take the service user home.
There are 4 members of the Stay Well @ Home staff currently undertaking the AGORED training.
The Carers coordinator delivers Carer aware training to graduate nurses on a regular basis. There is
also an online Carer Aware e-learning package which we encourage all staff to complete. Although
this is not mandatory it is something we hope to make mandatory in the future.

How are carers being proactively involved in the hospital discharge/discharge plans for the patient?
If Carers are identified by clinical staff they can be referred to our hospital discharge project. This will
give the Carer the opportunity to raise any concerns they have regarding the service user being
discharged. It may be they require additional support or home adaptations. If identified these issues
could be addressed before discharge, therefore giving the Carer more confidence to continue with
their caring role at home and possibly reduce the need for re-admission.
Are carers being pro-actively signposted to third sector support or local authority social services for
information, support, or to obtain a carers needs assessment (as appropriate), as part of the patient’s
discharge process?
To date our hospital discharge service have signposted to 178 services provided by either local
authority or third sector (breakdown available on request). In addition, Citizens Advice Bureau Merthyr
Tydfil have themselves assisted with 315 Carer queries.

Welsh Government reporting template 1.0

Page 54

- £1m LHB funding
14

Agenda Item 8
Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

5th November 2020
Judith Jones
Neighbourhood Services - Waste
Non Exempt
25th November 2020

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Circular Economy Fund – Award of Funding
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

The Circular Economy Fund enables Local Authorities to deliver capital projects to
support the move to a circular economy in wales, where waste is avoided, and
materials are kept in use for as long as possible.

1.2

The Waste strategy Team have recently secured £409k of funding for the following:





2 x 10-15kw Arrays to reduce Carbon Emissions and electricity usage at the
Dowlais and Aberfan HWRC’s - £30k
2 enclosed bins for mattress recycling - £8k
Purchase and distribution of 20,000 kerbside recycling boxes - £51,496
HWRC’s and Transfer station loading shovels/Manitou - £190k
On street recycling bins - £130k

2.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1

The purpose of this funding is to enable Local Authorities to deliver a capital project
to support the move to a circular economy in Wales - where waste is avoided and
materials are kept in use for as long as possible. This is an important part of the
action needed on climate change. It also brings many new opportunities as part of
the transition to a low carbon economy. The public sector has a key role to play in
supporting Wales’ move to a circular economy and delivering an enhanced service to
the people of Wales.

Page 55

2.2

In July this year the Waste Strategy Team submitted applications to the Circular
Economy Fund for the following:





2 x 10-15kw Solar Arrays to reduce Carbon Emissions and electricity
usage at the Dowlais and Aberfan HWRC’s
2 enclosed bins for mattress recycling at the HWRC’s
Purchase and distribution of 20,000 kerbside recycling boxes (to allow
us to separate glass and cardboard collections)
HWRC’s and transfer station loading shovels / Manitou
On street recycling bins to segregate waste

2.3

We have recently been notified that those applications were successful resulting in a
total award of funding of £409,496k.

2.4

This funding will contribute towards our efforts to reduce our Carbon Emissions and
meet the Welsh Government Waste recovery target of 64%, which are the objectives
of the Environmental Wellbeing Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan.

3.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1

None

4.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

2 of 4

0 of 4

2 of 4

5 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 5

10 of 10

0 of 10

0 of 10

1 of 1

0 of 1

0 of 1

2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:






Long term
Prevention
Integration
Collaboration
Involvement

3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity
Summary:

Page 56

The main positive impacts against:





Wellbeing Objectives are that it contributes to the enhancement and promotion of the
environment by supporting our efforts to reduce carbon emissions and increase
recycling.
Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposal integrates with both Council
and WG decarbonization and waste strategies.
Protected Characteristics and Welsh language are that the proposal will contribute to
the wellbeing of all by contributing to carbon reduction and sustainable waste
management.
Biodiversity are that the proposal will support decarbonisation and sustainable waste
management.

No negative impacts have been identified.

JUDITH JONES
CHIEF OFFICER PLANNING &
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

COUNCILLOR D HUGHES
CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING &
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Document(s) Date

Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

